
BELLEVUE NETWORK ON AGING 
REGULAR MEETING 

MINUTES 
 

February 7, 2008 Bellevue City Hall
8:30 a.m. Room 1E -120
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Lynne Robinson, Stephen Lam, Eileen Rasnack, Berta 

Seltzer, Catherine Brallier, Dwayne Dilley, Jim 
Messner, Diana Thompson, Howard Katz, Gary 
Dickerman 

 
MEMBERS ABSENT: Christina Coulter, Valentina Kiselev, Eve Stern, 

Marjorie Todd 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Cathy VonWald, Department of Parks and Community 

Services  
 
OTHERS PRESENT: Penny Kahn, Barbee Pigott, Kirkland Senior Council 
 
RECORDING SECRETARY: Gerry Lindsay 
 
 
1. WELCOME AND ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at 8:34 a.m. by Chair Robinson who presided.  All committee 
members were present with the exception of Christina Coulter, Valentina Kiselev, Eve Stern 
and Marjorie Todd, all of whom were excused.   
 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 A. January 10, 2008 Retreat 
 
Ms. Thompson called attention to the section on Support Services and the statement “link 
transportation to Support Services for awareness of ….” and said she did not remember that 
ever being said.  Chair Robinson said the issue was raised during the conversation of possibly 
changing the name of the Support Services subcommittee.   
 
It was agreed to change the top line item to “reassess name of Support Services 
subcommittee.”  
 
Motion to approve the minutes as amended was made by Ms. Seltzer.  Second was by 
Mr. Katz and the motion carried unanimously. 
 
3. DISCUSSION 
 
 A. Mission/Slogan 
 
Chair Robinson commented that the retreat was very helpful; it brought a lot of topics to the 
table and generated a lot of consensus.  She noted that the mission statement “Making 
Bellevue a Great Place to Grow Up and Grow Old” was discussed, but said after the meeting 
she began to wonder if in fact the statement is a slogan rather than a mission statement.   
 

Bellevue Network on Aging 
February 7, 2008  Page 1 



Commissioner Seltzer noted that a subcommittee was appointed to study the mission 
statement issue.  Ms. VonWald reminded the group that the vote at the retreat as to whether or 
not anything should be changed was split.   
 
Mr. Messner asked for a quick show of hands of those not willing to change the current 
mission statement, noting that the previous vote was 6-7.   
 
Commissioner Seltzer said she would like to see what the subcommittee comes up with before 
making a decision.  Mr. Katz agreed.  Mr. Dilley agreed as well.   
 
Ms. Thompson suggested that the Network has better things to spend its time on.  However, if 
there are those who want to work on crafting a new mission statement, they should be allowed 
to do so.   
 
It was agreed to leave the issue with the subcommittee.   
 
 B. January 28 City Council Meeting 
 
Chair Robinson commented that as an advisory board, the Network has the responsibility to 
report back periodically to the City Council.  To that end, Mr. Dickerman attended the 
January 28 meeting of the City Council and provided a very concise and professional report 
regarding the work of the transportation subcommittee.  Specific comments regarding the 
downtown circulator was offered.  The feedback received from the Council was excellent.  
She encouraged each subcommittee to think of ways to communicate with the city.   
 
Mr. Dickerman said in the three minutes allotted him he outlined the concerns of the 
transportation subcommittee regarding the route for the downtown circulator.  He said prior to 
the meeting staff had advised him that the downtown circulator is still under review and being 
handled by King County Metro.   
 
He said he presented to the Council a document comparing their route with the route the 
Network would prefer to see implemented.  He said he told them the Rapid Ride program that 
will be online in a few years and that the circulator could provided the needed service in the 
meantime.   
 
Mr. Dickerman said the Council recognized the work of the Network during the Council 
discussion.  Several of the Councilmembers came up to him during a break to affirm the 
appreciation of the Council for the work being done by the Network.   
 
Mr. Katz commented that Older Americans Month is coming up in May.  He said the Network 
should prepare a report for the Council during that month.  It was agreed to put the issue on 
the agenda for an upcoming meeting.   
 
Ms. VonWald said the downtown circulator is currently in the hands of King County Metro.  
The city would like to see the service started in 2008, but it may not happen until 2010.   
 
Mr. Dilley said one person from the public during the public comment period spoke against 
the circulator, saying the city could spend its money in better ways.  He said he also spoke 
with two business persons in the audience who indicated that Bellevue has twice in the past 
tried to have a circulator and both times it failed.   
 
Commissioner Seltzer said the reason the concept previously failed was because there was not 
a sufficient number of residents living in the downtown area.  That picture has changed 



dramatically and by 2010 the projection is there will be 10,000 people living in the downtown 
area.   
 
Mr. Dilley said he made that point to the gentlemen and added that the Network wants to 
make sure that the retired people who cannot afford to live in the downtown will be able to 
use the circulator to get around.   
 
Chair Robinson noted that in a recent survey 97 percent of seniors in Bellevue want to remain 
in their own homes.  The Network mission statement has that notion at its heart.  In order to 
accomplish that goal, the city will need to provide a variety of benefits to people of all ages.  
Mr. Dilley agreed but pointed out that as the Network continues to get more involved, it will 
by necessity have to get more involved in the politics.  Ms. VonWald said that can be done 
without becoming a political group; the way to do it is by presenting facts and making 
recommendations.   
 
Mr. Katz stressed the effectiveness of carrying the message directly to Councilmembers in 
one-on-one conversations, provided it is done in a very tactful way.   
 
Chair Robinson praised Mr. Dickerman for the excellent job in did in representing the 
Network before the Council.  She suggested that each subcommittee should provide a report 
to the Council at least once per year.   
 
Ms. Thompson asked if the Network has a Council liaison.  Mr. Katz said the Network reports 
to the Parks and Community Services Board which has Councilmember Chelmeniak as its 
liaison.  Ms. VonWald added that Park Board member Peter Maxim has been attending the 
Network meetings and providing reports to the Park Board.   
 
Answering a question asked by Ms. Thompson, Ms. VonWald said Mr. Maxim gets the 
minutes from Network, and they are posted on the website.  Ms. Thompson suggested 
forwarding the minutes directly to Councilmember Chelmeniak, then if the Network has a 
meeting he could benefit from by attending, he could be specifically invited.   
 
Mr. Dilley suggested that having each subcommittee address the Council once per year is not 
necessary.  The Network should be before the Council at least once a year, and the Council 
liaison and individual Councilmembers should be invited to the monthly Network meetings.   
 
Commissioner Seltzer said going once a year will not be pushing the Network’s welcome at 
all.  The opportunity should be used to provide the full Council with a briefing on Network 
goals and activities.   
 
Commissioner Seltzer asked how the Network can become a board or a commission focused 
on the aging population of the city rather than a subset of the Parks and Community Services 
Board.  Ms. VonWald said that topic was broached when the Network was being set up.  The 
Council was not at that time interested in creating any additional boards or commissions.  
Commissioner Seltzer said she is somewhat troubled by the fact that the Council seems very 
interested in the work and focus of the Network, while the Network has not been afforded the 
status of being able to report directly to the Council.   
 
Mr. Katz asked the Kirkland Senior Council representatives what their structure is.  Barbee 
Pigott said the Senior Council reports to the Kirkland Park Board.  Once a year the Senior 
Council meets with the City Council in a session that lasts two hours.  During that meeting 
reports are given, feedback is received, and plans for the future are shared.  The approach is 
very productive.   
 

Bellevue Network on Aging 
February 7, 2008  Page 3 



Commissioner Seltzer said the piece the Network should be able to have a lot of input on is 
the Bel-Red corridor, an issue that will be on the table for many years to come.  She said she 
would like to see the Network be able to provide reports without having to go through so 
many channels.  Having an annual session with the City Council directly would suffice.   
 
Motion to have Ms. VonWald look into the possibility of setting up a meeting between the 
Network and the City Council was made by Commissioner Seltzer.  Second was by Mr. Katz 
and the motion carried unanimously.   
 
 C. BNOA Collaboration with Other Aging Groups 
 
Chair Robinson said she and Ms. VonWald met with the Kirkland Senior Council prior to the 
Network retreat, and that she and Ms. Pigott met with the Mercer Island Senior Commission 
about a month ago.  The discussions ran toward the possibility of having a collaborative 
project that all three groups could work on together.  At the retreat the Network voted to do 
that, but there has not been any discussion regarding what specific project should be done.   
 
Ms. Pigot said to date no project has been proposed.  She suggested a subcommittee with 
members from all three groups should be formed to consider the possibilities.   
 
Ms. Thompson and Mr. Katz agreed to represent the Network on the subcommittee.   
 
Chair Robinson suggested that legislative issues might be one topic the three aging groups 
might collaborate on.   
 
Ms. Pigott suggested the chosen topic should be on the small side given the number of 
projects on the agendas of the respective bodies.   
 
4. STAFF REPORT 
 
Ms. VonWald reported that the Overlake Hospital Active Senior Fair is scheduled for March 
1 at Westminster from 10:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m.  The Kirkland Senior Council will have a half 
table at the event, as will the Network/City.  She proposed the two groups should work from 
the same table and suggested that one or two members of the Network should be present.  Ms. 
Robinson and Ms. Thompson volunteered to attend the event.  
 
Ms. VonWald said she traveled to Olympia for Senior Lobby Day in January.  She said she 
went with the Seattle/King County Advisory Council from Aging and Disability Services of 
King County and with the state Council on Aging.  She said she received a briefing from the 
Washington State Senior Lobby regarding issues coming up in the legislative agenda.  The 
governor then spoke about her commitment to older adults.  The balance of the day was spent 
meeting with legislators.   
 
Ms. VonWald said the issues pushed by the senior lobby included housing, family caregiving, 
affordable healthcare, and dental care.   
 
Human Services Planner Alex O’Reilly said the dental bill, SB-6222, would establish a three-
year pilot project for Medicaid-eligible adults age 55 and up.  She said the bill is scheduled 
for review in the Senate Ways and Means Committee later in the day, adding that it is good 
news that the bill made it out of the policy committee.  There are, however, a number of 
opponents to SB-6222.   
 
Ms. Thompson asked if it would be appropriate for the Network to pass a resolution in 
support of the resolution and asking the Council to take a position.  Ms. O’Reilly said there is 



a great deal of process involved in getting the Council to take a position; for SB-6222, it 
might just be too late.  It would be appropriate, however, for Network members acting on 
their own to contact their individual legislators.   
 
Ms. O’Reilly made the suggestion that the committee may want to consider forming an 
advocacy committee focused on legislation moving through the process that might be of 
interest to seniors, or to look at special projects as they get approved by the legislature and be 
prepared for the 2009 legislative process.   
 
Ms. O’Reilly noted that Ms. VonWald is a member of the Seattle/King County Advisory 
Council on Aging and Disability Services.  The outreach and advocacy committee/healthcare 
task force of that group will be meeting on February 8 in Seattle; one topic of discussion will 
be the current legislative session.  Anyone wanting to attend the committee meeting is free to 
do so.  The Network members were reminded that the Eastside Human Services Forum has an 
education and advocacy subcommittee that is following several issues.   
 
Ms. VonWald said the state Council on Aging is working seriously to reinvent itself.  To date 
the group has not had a strong voice.  The group is looking at new ways of doing business and 
discussing how it should operate; it likely will be a year of transition for the group.   
 
Ms. VonWald said she also attended the Advisory Council for Aging and Disability Services 
retreat.  She distributed to the Network members copies of the powerpoint presentation giving 
an overview of what the organization does.  She also distributed copies of the list of services 
provided by the Area Agency on Aging.   
 
Mr. Katz suggested “To identify the needs of older people in the city of Bellevue” as the 
mission statement for the Network.   
 
Ms. VonWald reported that a representative from the Eastside Human Services Forum will be 
present at the March Network meeting to make a presentation.   
 
Ms. VonWald also noted that the Eastside Human Services Forum is forming an older adults 
advisory committee.  Ms. O’Reilly added that the committee has not yet been formed and said 
there will be opportunity for representation by the Network.    
 
The committee was also provided with copies of an article regarding senior centers in New 
York City and how they are being transformed into healthy aging centers.   
 
5. BREAK 
 
6. KIRKLAND SENIOR COUNCIL MEETING REPORT 
 
Ms. Pigott said the Senior Council retreat was very successful.  She said it was the third 
retreat for the group and noted that every one gets better and more productive.  About a third 
of the Kirkland City Council is new having been seated in January, so some time had to be 
taken to bring them up to speed.  Accomplishments for the past year were reviewed, then the 
focus was turned to the work plan for 2008.   
 
Ms. Pigott said the facilitator handed each Senior Council member $50 in Monopoly money, 
saying she figured each person would put in approximately 50 hours during the year attending 
meetings and the like.  A list of projects was developed and displayed on a bulletin board, 
then each person was asked to put their money next to the projects they were willing to 
support.  The end result was a very realistic set of projects and goals.   
 

Bellevue Network on Aging 
February 7, 2008  Page 5 



7. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Before asking for the subcommittee reports, Chair Robinson announced that the members of 
the various subcommittees should feel free to transfer their loyalty from one subcommittee to 
another as they choose.   
 
Ms. VonWald said anyone wanting to change their affiliation should let her or Chair 
Robinson know.   
 
 A. Transportation  
 
Mr. Dickerman reported that the Easy Rider committee met in January and received great 
exposure by testifying before the City Council.  He said the committee spent quite a lot of 
time focused on the downtown circulator, and on the level of involvement the committee 
should have in rolling out the Bus Buddy program.  The program is being operated under the 
auspices of Hopelink, but that agency will need some help with marketing, recruiting and the 
like.   
 
Mr. Dickerman said the Eastside Easy Rider Collaborative was handed some pilot program 
opportunities right out of the gate; there were funding opportunities available and the group 
took advantage of them.  The goals for the group are to identify additional funding sources for 
the future and projects that can be handled, and to look for opportunities to widen the 
participation base.  The group will be meeting later in the month to focus on setting specific 
goals.   
 
Funding remains unclear for the Dial-A-Ride program at the federal level.   
 
 B. Housing 
 
Ms. Rasnack said the committee had a number of its members traveling and out of town 
during January so did not meet.  She said plans have been made to meet during the month of 
February, and a full report will be given at the March Network meeting.   
 
 C. Support Services 
 
Ms. Thompson noted that at the retreat the notion of changing the name of the Support 
Services subcommittee was made.  The committee met after the retreat, talked about it, and 
concluded that there is no better name.   
 
With regard to the Gatekeeper program, Ms. Thompson reminded the Network that the 
program is operated by Senior Services.  The idea is predicated on community members being 
aware of seniors who might need help.  When a senior in need of help is identified, a call to 
Senior Services will result in an attempt to contact the senior in question with an offer of 
assistance.  During the first contact, the senior most often indicates that no help is needed.  
The caller then offers to send written materials and to call again after some time, and the 
senior nearly always agrees to that arrangement, and when contacted again often accepts the 
help proffered.   
 
Ms. Thompson said Support Services is assisting the Gatekeeper program by finding places 
within the city where Senior Services can make presentations.  There have been contacts with 
the neighborhood liaisons who work for the city.  The next Gatekeeper training is scheduled 
for Tuesday, February 12, at 1:00 p.m. at City Hall.   
 



Ms. VonWald said she has not yet had a chance to pursue the notion of getting the Gatekeeper 
training video shown on BTV.   
 
Ms. Thompson said the subcommittee encourages the sharing of resource information across 
non-profits, private organizations and government.  The group intends to conduct a focus 
group with area hospital organizations.   
 
The subcommittee has been batting around for some time the development of magnets to be 
distributed to seniors.  The issue has been whose number to put on the magnets, 2-1-1 or 
Senior Services.  There has been no resolution to that issue yet.   
 
Ms. O’Reilly said she recently called the contact at Crisis Clinic who indicated an interest in 
understanding why there has been a certain degree of dissatisfaction with regard to seniors 
getting into the 2-1-1 system.  She said there will be a follow-up listing specifics rather than 
generalities so they can get to the bottom of the problem.   
 
Ms. Thompson reported that it has been voted to once again participate in the Home Sweet 
Home fair.   
 
Chair Robinson asked the Network members to provide input regarding what speakers should 
be invited to attend the meetings, and about what information should be discussed.   
 
Ms. Brallier suggested asking the 2-1-1 people to attend and talk about that program.   
 
Mr. Dilley proposed asking speakers to attend who have a tie to projects being worked on by 
the Network.   
 
Ms. Rasnack thought it would be helpful to get an update regarding the Bel-Red corridor 
process and especially where the Network might fit in.   
 
Chair Robinson said she would like to receive an update regarding the various city initiatives, 
of which Bel-Red is one.   
 
Mr. Katz proposed asked Representative Dave Reichert to attend and provide an update 
regarding happenings at the federal level.  Chair Robinson said it would also be good to hear 
from a state legislator.   
 
Ms. Thompson suggested that at the right time of year the legislative committee of Aging and 
Disability Services should be asked to come and tell the Network what issues are coming up 
before the state legislature.    
 
Ms. O’Reilly suggested the Network could benefit from having someone come to talk about 
aging veterans issues.  She said Doug Hoople, past chair of the Human Services Commission, 
serves as co-chair of the Human Services and Veterans Levy Oversight Board, would be a 
good choice.   
 
Ms. O’Reilly took a moment to thank Commissioner Seltzer for representing the Network on 
Aging and thanked the Human Services Commission for allowing the Network to be involved 
in the Needs Update process.   
 
Ms. O’Reilly reported that HB-2897 has cleared committee and will be brought to the floor 
for discussion.  The bill seeks to include cars on the list of Medicaid exemptions.  She also 
reported that SB-6583, which would raise the income eligibility so that more people could get 
Medicaid benefits, has also made it through the committee process.   

Bellevue Network on Aging 
February 7, 2008  Page 7 



 
8. PUBLIC COMMENTS/QUESTIONS 
 
9. UPCOMING AGENDA ITEMS 
 
The Network reviewed upcoming agenda items.   
 
10. ADJOURN 
 
Chair Robinson adjourned the meeting at 10:27 a.m. 


	Bellevue City Hall
	Room 1E -120

